
SOUTHWEST AREA TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, April 4, 2022 
3:00 p.m. 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://cityofsanramon.zoom.us/j/99184096551 

Meeting ID: 991 8409 6551  
One tap mobile  

+1-669-900-6833 - 99184096551# US (San Jose)  

CORONAVIRUS DISEASE (COVID-19) ADVISORY AND MEETING PROCEDURE 

Assembly Bill 361 suspends certain provisions of the Brown Act, allowing public meetings to be 
held by teleconference.  As a precaution to protect the health and safety of staff, officials, and the 
general public.  Committee members will not be physically in attendance, but will be available via 
video conference.  

There will be no physical location for members to the public to participate in the meeting.  We 
encourage members of the public to shelter in place and access the meeting online using the web-
video communication application, Zoom.  Zoom participants will have the opportunity to speak 
during Public Comment (for topics not on the agenda), in addition to each of the agenized items. 

If you are submitting a public comment via email, please do so by 12:00 p.m. on Monday, April 
4, 2022 to damaral@sanramon.ca.gov.  Please include “Public Comment 04/04/2022” in the 
subject line.  In the body of the email, please include your name and the item you wish to speak 
on. Public comments submitted will be read during Public Comment and will be subject to the 
regular three-minute time restriction.  

This Committee meeting will be conducted on the web-video communication platform, Zoom. In 
order to view and/or participate in this meeting, members of the public will need to download 
Zoom from it’s website, https://zoom.us/. It is recommended that anyone wishing to participate in 
the meeting complete the download process before the start of the meeting.  

1. CONVENE MEETING/SELF INTRODUCTION

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public are invited to address the Committee regarding any item that is not listed on 1

https://cityofsanramon.zoom.us/j/99184096551
mailto:damaral@sanramon.ca.gov
https://zoom.us/


the agenda.  (Please complete a speaker card in advance of the meeting and hand it to a member of 
the staff) 

3. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT

4. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

5.A Approval of Minutes: SWAT Meeting Minutes of February 7, 2022

End of Consent Calendar 

6. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

6.A  Update on the Policy Framework for One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) Cycle 3 Program in
Contra Costa: by John Hoang, CCTA (Information Only: Attachment – No Action 
Required) 

6.B Consider and Approve request from the Town of Danville to Reprogram Measure J
Transportation for Livable Communities Program Funds and forward a recommendation 
to CCTA: by Andy Dillard, Town of Danville (Attachment – Action Required) 

7. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS (Attachments – Action as determined necessary)

• SWAT Meeting Summary – February 7, 2022
• CCTA Board Meeting Summary – February 16, 2022
• TRANSPAC Meeting Summary – March 10, 2022
• TRANSPLAN Meeting Summary – March 10, 2022
• CCTA Board Meeting Summary – March 16, 2022

8. DISCUSSION: Next Agenda 
9. ADJOURNMENT Monday, May 2, 2022 - 3:00 p.m.- Zoom Teleconference 

The SWAT Committee will provide reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities planning to participate in SWAT monthly meetings. 
Please contact Darlene Amaral at least 48 hours before the meeting at (925) 973-2655 or damaral@sanramon.ca.gov. 

Staff Contact:  Brian Bornstein, Interim SWAT Administrative Staff  
Phone: (925) 973-2686 / E-Mail: bbornstein@sanramon.ca.gov. 

Agendas, minutes and other information regarding this committee can be found at: https://swatcommittee.org/  

2

mailto:bbornstein@sanramon.ca.gov
https://swatcommittee.org/


AGENDA ITEM 5.A 

3



 
 

SUMMARY MINUTES 
February 7, 2022 – 3:00 p.m. 

 
Committee members present:  Renta Sos, Town of Moraga; Teresa Gerringer, City of Lafayette; 
Candace Andersen, Contra Costa County; Dave Hudson, City of San Ramon; Amy Worth, City of 
Orinda (Vice Chair); Karen Stepper, Town of Danville (Chair) 
 
Committee members absent:  
 
Staff members present: Mike Moran, City of Lafayette; Sivakumar Natarajan, City of Orinda; 
Robert Sarmiento, Contra Costa County; Darlene Amaral, City of San Ramon; Brian Bornstein, City 
of San Ramon, Katelyn Costa, Town of Danville; Andy Dillard, Town of Danville; Bret Swain, Town 
of Moraga 
 
Others present: Melody Reeds, County Connection; Celestine Do, BART; John Hoang, CCTA; 
Colin Clarke, CCTA; Drummond Buckley, City of Orinda 
 
1. CONVENE MEETING/SELF INTRODUCTIONS:  Meeting called to order by Chair 

Gerringer at 3:00 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
3. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
4. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

5.A Approval of Minutes: SWAT Meeting of January 10, 2022 
 

ACTION: APPROVED – Hudson/Gerringer/unanimous 
 
End of Consent Calendar 

 
6. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
6.A Discussion Item – the Policy Framework for One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) Cycle 3 

Program in Contra Costa  
 
John Hoang, Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) presented this item.  Mr. 
Hoang provided an overview that the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 
released its initial draft policy framework and program criteria for investing Federal Surface 

4



Transportation Program (STP) and Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) funds over 
a four-year period covering federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2022-23 through FFY 2025-26.  
CCTA is the Congestion Management Agency (CMA), and is responsible for submitting 
eligible project priorities to MTC and administering the call for projects in accordance with 
MTC guidelines.   
 
Contra Costa County is estimated to receive approximately $52 million in grant funding 
based on the previous OBAG 2 cycle, but at this time MTC has not confirmed amount.  
CCTA staff is proposing a program framework, which focuses on two project types:  
 

1. Active Transportation and Safety – Projects of Countywide Significance (ATS-PCS) 
Program 

a. The ATS-PCS project list, includes Safe Routes to School (SRTS) and 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects, will be developed through a countywide 
competitive call for projects application process.  

2. Countywide Smart Signals Project  
a. This project entails upgrading traffic controllers and signal systems within 

the 19 cities/towns and unincorporated Contra Costa County, based on needs 
and primarily along routes of regional significance.  

b. CCTA will be the project sponsor for funding, design, etc... 
c. CCTA will be the lead agency to facilitate this Countywide project and 

CCTA/Consultants will reach out to other agencies to coordinate.  
   
Mr. Hoang stated that funding for Local Streets and Roads will not be included in this around 
of OBAG Cycle 3.  There are other funding sources available for Local Streets and Roads.   

 
Colin Clarke, CCTA provided additional information regarding ATS-PCS project list.  One 
of the requirements from MTC guidelines is an adopted Local Roads Safety Plan by end of 
calendar year 2023.  And, regarding the Priority Development Areas (PDA), the OBAG 3 
funding requires 70% or more of the funds to be spent in PDA areas. Staff is encouraging 
local agencies to collaborate with neighboring jurisdictions and other jurisdictions to bundle 
projects, so they can compete more readily at the regional level.   
 
Projects proposed for funding must have been included in the 2018 adopted Countywide 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, the Countywide Pedestrian Needs Assessment, SRTS 
programing or identified as a project that can move Contra Costa County more quickly 
toward Countywide Vision Zero. Project sponsors would need to provide 11.47% in 
matching funds.   
 
Mr. Hoang mentioned that this process is moving quickly.  Below is a draft schedule being 
proposed for the development of the OBAG 3 call for projects and policy framework:  

 
• January 20, 2022 (TCC): OBAG 3 policy framework - discussion on the draft.  
• February 16, 2022 (Authority Board): OBAG 3 policy framework - discussion on the 

draft.  
• February - March 2022 (Regional Transportation Planning Committees):  OBAG 3 

policy framework - discussion on the draft.  
• February 17, 2022 (TCC): Development of ATS-PCS application and scoring 

criteria.  
• March 2, 2022 (PC): Draft OBAG 3 policy framework and application process.  

5



• March 16, 2022 (Authority Board): Draft OBAG 3 policy framework and application 
process.  

• March 17, 2022 (TCC): Creation of applications review subcommittee.  
• March 28, 2022 (Countywide Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee (CBPAC)): 

Creation of application review subcommittee.  
• April 6, 2022 (PC): Review of Final OBAG 3 policy framework and application 

process.  
• April 20, 2022 (Authority Board): Adoption of Final OBAG 3 policy framework and 

application process.  
• April 21, 2022: Authority staff to release a countywide call for projects.  
• June 1, 2022: Application due to the Authority.  
• July 2022 (CBPAC and TCC): Meeting to review project applications.  
• August 18, 2022 (TCC): Special meeting to review recommended projects.  
• August 22, 2022 (CBPAC): Special meeting to review recommended projects.  
• September 7, 2022 (PC): Approval to submit recommended project list to MTC.  
• September 21, 2022 (Authority Board): Final approval to submit project list to MTC 

for evaluation.  
• September 30, 2022: Project list due to MTC.  
• January 2023 (MTC): Approval of the countywide project list.  
• October 1, 2023: OBAG 3 funding becomes available 

 
ACTION: Information Only – No action required 

 
7. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: The following written communication items were    

made available: 
 

• SWAT Meeting Summary – January 10, 2022 
• Contra Costa Transportation Authority Meeting Summary – January 19, 2022 

 
 ACTION:  Informational Items Only – No action required 

 
8. DISCUSSION: Next Agenda 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT: to Monday, March 7, 2022 at 3:00 p.m.– Zoom Teleconference 

 
ACTION: Meeting adjourned by Chair Stepper at 4:00 p.m. 

 
Staff Contact: 

      Brian Bornstein 
      City of San Ramon 
      P (925) 973-2686 
      Email address: bbornstein@sanramon.ca.gov  

 
Alternate Staff Contact: 
      Darlene Amaral 
      City of San Ramon 
      P (925) 973-2655 
      Email address: damaral@sanramon.ca.gov      
   

6

mailto:bbornstein@sanramon.ca.gov
mailto:damaral@sanramon.ca.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6.A 
 
 
 
 
 

7



 
DATE: April 4, 2022 
 
TO:  Southwest Area Transportation Committee (SWAT) 
   
FROM: SWAT Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
 
SUBJECT: Policy Framework Update for One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) 

Cycle 3 Program in Contra Costa  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This item was presented at the February 7th SWAT meeting but since that time 
there have been updates to the OBAG 3 program. On March 9, 2022, MTC 
resolution no. 4505 was amended to incorporate revisions to the OBAG 3 program 
to incorporate guidelines for the County and Local Program for the region wide 
competitive call for projects process, administered and selected by MTC in 
coordination with the nine Bay Area County Transportation Agencies (CTAs). 
The guidelines provide additional details on the procedures and the project 
selection criteria outlined in the overall OBAG 3 programming framework. More 
details of this MTC Resolution No. 4505 (revised), is attached. 
 
Also as more clarifying questions and information becomes available while 
CCTA has been conducting outreach to the RTPC subareas, City-County 
Engineering Advisory Committee, etc., some of the details and information has 
been updated and clarified in greater detail. A PowerPoint presentation (attached) 
will be provided regarding overall OBAG 3 updates. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
John Hoang, CCTA Director of Planning will provide a OBAG 3 Policy 
Framework Update and SWAT is requested to provide feedback and input. This 
is an informational item only; no action is required at this time. 
 
NEXT STEPS  
 
It is anticipated that the Final OBAG 3 Program and Call for Projects be presented 
to the Authority Board on May 18, 2022, and the release of the Call for Projects 
shortly after. Applications are tentatively planned to be due end of July. The 
evaluation and scoring of applications will occur during August and the proposed 
project list will be presented to the Authority Board for approval at the September 

8



21, 2022, Board meeting. The final nominated project list will be submitted to 
MTC by the end of September. MTC plans to select final project list and program 
the projects into the 2023 TIP in January 2023. OBAG 3 funds will be available 
in October 2023 for projects selected for funding. 
 
Staff Contact: 
 
 Brian Bornstein, Interim SWAT Administrative staff 
 Phone:  (925) 973-2686 

Email:  bbornstein@sanramon.ca.gov  
 

 

9

mailto:bbornstein@sanramon.ca.gov


Southwest Area Transportation (SWAT) Committee Board Meeting
April 4, 2022

John Hoang, Director, Planning
Colin Clarke, Associate Planner

One Bay Area Grant Cycle 3
(OBAG 3) Framework

10



Background
• Based on Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) Policy

• Federal Surface Transportation Funds and Congestion Mitigation Air 
Quality Improvement (STP/CMAQ) Funds

• Estimated Funds Available
• $340M Regional Program

• $340M County and Local Program ($408M Nomination Target)

• 4-Year Period: FY 2022-23 through FY 2025-26

• Align with PBA 2050 Strategies and Federal Performance Goals

11



Program Details
• Regionwide Call for Projects process; with projects selected for funding by MTC

• Focus on investments in Priority Development Areas (PDAs) and community 
identified projects in EPCs (Equity Priority Communities); 
• 70% of investment must be directed to PDAs, TRAs (Transit Rich Areas), 

• Located within or connected to PDA, within one mile of PDA boundary, or providing 
clear and direct connection to PDA implementation

• Investment targets for active transportation, SRTS (Safe Routes to Schools), and 
PDA investments

• Project Sponsors comply with policy requirements: housing, complete streets, 
safety plans, and pavement management programs

12



Contra Costa, Countywide
• CTA Planning (CCTA)

• $4.087M; By population w/ 2% increase annually

• County/Local Program
• Nomination Amount: $56,775,000

• MTC Countywide Target Amount: $47M
• Allocation by formula - not allowed

13



Contra Costa Prioritization Criteria
• Eligibility

• Consistent with PBA 2050; meet OBAG3 programming 
requirements

• Deliverability
• Able to deliver projects and meet OBAG3 deadlines
• Obligate funds no later than January 31, 2027

• Community Support
• Included in CBTPs; Endorsed by CBO; Public outreach

• Prioritization Criteria
• Locate in PDAs or TRAs, PPAs (Priority production area)
• EPC (Equity Priority Communities)

14



Regional Evaluation (MTC)
• Eligibility
• Evaluation of all projects against regional criteria

• CTA Prioritization (75 pts)
• CTA prioritization normalized or tiered by county for regional comparison

• Regional Criteria (25 pts)
• RTP strategy alignment & Project effectiveness/impact

• Deliverability

• CMAQ eligible projects only (emissions benefits & cost effectiveness)

• Overall program balance
• 70% PDA investment targets; $25M (SRTS); $200M (bike/ped)

15



Proposed Program Framework
• $47M Estimated

• $23.5M – Smart Signals

• $23.5M – Active Transportation and Safety

• (1) Smart Signals
• CCTA to be Project Sponsor

• Coordinate with jurisdictions to identify location

• City to provide matching funds (11.47%)

• (2) Active Transportation and Safety
• Call for Projects Process

• Refer to adopted 2018 CCTA Bicycle/Pedestrian Projects list, and others 
adopted locally

16



Smart Signals
• Project Description

• Upgrade traffic signal system and communication system
• Interconnect signals on major corridors throughout the county
• Upgrade signal system software on connected corridor
• Enable implementation of safety improvements to minimize collisions for 

drivers, pedestrians and bicyclist
• Includes deployment of intelligent transportation system (ITS) such as

• Signal coordination, CCTV cameras, video detection, emergency vehicle 
preemption, transit signal priority, and enabling remote access.

• Goals:
• Improve multi-modal safety & minimize collisions, fatalities, and injuries
• Improve congestion management & optimize mobility
• Give signal priority to transit and people walking & bicycling, before SOVs
• Provide hardware to prepare for Automated & Connected Vehicles

17



SMART SIGNAL IMPROVEMENTS

UPGRADE TO ADVANCED 
CONTROLLERS & ATC CABINETS

BENEFIT: 
ADVANCED 

MOBILITY

FIBER OPTIC/CELLULAR  COMMUNICATION
BENEFIT: 

BETTER CAPACITY AND RELIABILITY

VIDEO DETECTION
BENEFIT: 
UNOBTRUSIVE MONITORING  & MANAGING THE ROAD NETWORK 

VULNERABLE ROAD USER PROTECTION
BENEFIT: 
PEDESTRIAN SAFETY & HEALTH

SMART MOBILITY
BENEFIT: 

SIGNAL CONTROL AND PRIORITIZATION

VIDEO/DATA ANALYTICS
BENEFIT: 
SAFETY MONITORING AND ALERTS

18



Smart Signal Goals

IMPROVE SAFETY AND MINIMIZE
CRASHES, 

INJURIES / FATALITIES

OPTIMIZED
MOBILITY

ADVANCE TO SMART CITY
AND IOT SOLUTIONS

19



Active Transportation & Safety
• Eligible Project Types

• (Bundled) project scope that primarily serves vulnerable road users, 
e.g., people walking or bicycling/rolling (micromobility); can include repaving

• Pedestrian walkways, and modification of public sidewalks to comply with ADA

• Safety projects (e.g., Roundabouts) known to reduce air pollutants, greenhouse gas 
emissions, severity of each collision, and individual & regional economic costs per 
repair/recovery; and

• Innovative transportation planning, e.g., to reduce fatalities & severe injuries

• Meet “Proximate Access to PDA” requirements (70% of funds)
20



Common Patterns: Collisions Involving 
Bicycling & Walking

Vulnerable population: 
Seniors

Vulnerable population: 
Youth

Contraflow bike riding

Transit priority areas

Speeding

Driving Under the Influence

U
se

r B
eh

av
io

r
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
Ar

ea
s a

nd
 

Po
pu

la
tio

ns
 

Channelized 
right turns

Skewed 
intersections

“Unprotected” left turns 
at signal

Red light 
violations

Highway 
interchanges

Trail 
crossings

Bu
ilt

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t F

ac
to

rs

25% of Californians will be age 60 or 
older by 2030: 11 million

traffic deaths = leading cause of 
death (U.S.)

Countywide in 
Pedestrian 
Priority Areas
2008–2017
SWITRS

15
21



Active Transportation & Safety
• Eligible applicants

• Cities/Towns, BART, Transit agencies

• Co-sponsors: EBRPD, Special Districts (e.g., CCWD)

• Require 11.47% matching funds from project sponsor

• Project eligibility

• Minimum Project grant amount: $500,000 (Federal funds)

• Maximum 2 projects per jurisdiction; County allowed up to 4 projects

• Projects can be bundled across jurisdictions

• Jurisdictions must comply with Housing and Transportation policies, e.g., LRSP

22



Call for Projects Outline
• Eligible Project Types

• Active Transportation & Safety

• LS&R with Bike and/or Ped Component
• Can apply for full cost of the bike and/or ped component plus 50% of the pavement cost

• Example: Total LS&R Project cost = $1M ($250K – Bike/Ped; $750K – Pavement)

• Minimum Application is $500K

23



Schedule
• Jan 20: TCC – Draft OBAG 3 Policy Framework
• Jan/Feb/Mar: RTPCs
• April 25: CBPAC
• April 18: CBPAC – Review Draft Scoring Criteria & Create Application Review Subcommittee
• April 20: RTPC TACs – Draft OBAG 3 Policy and Application Process
• April 21: TCC – Draft OBAG 3 Policy and Application Process
• May 4: PC – Review & recommend approval: Final OBAG 3 Policy and Application Process
• May 18: Board – Adopt Final OBAG 3 Policy and Application Process
• May 23: CBPAC
• May OBAG 3 Application Workshop
• April 21: TCC – Draft OBAG 3 Program & Call for Projects: Active Transportation & Safety 

and Local Streets & Roads
• June 30: Application due to Authority; Projects screened, then reviewed
• July 1 – 14: Review panel review and rank projects.
• July 25: CBPAC – review 
• Aug: Special meetings as needed
• Sep 7: PC – Recommend Approval to submit project nominations list to MTC
• Sep 21: Board – Approval to submit project list to MTC
• Sep 26: CBPAC – review
• Sep 21: Draft proposed project list due to MTC
• Sep 30: Submit final proposed project list due to MTC
• Jan 2023: MTC – Approval of Regionwide project list
• Oct 2023: OBAG 3 funds become available

24



25



  

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

Programming and Allocations Committee 
March 9, 2022 Agenda Item 3a - 22-0343 

MTC Resolution No. 4505, Revised  

Subject: 

Revisions to the One Bay Area Grant program (OBAG 3) to adopt guidelines for the County & 

Local Program call for projects. 

Background: 

The OBAG 3 program, adopted by the Commission in January 2022, establishes the policy and 

programming framework for investing federal Surface Transportation Block Grant Program 

(STP) and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement program (CMAQ) funds for FY 

2022-23 through FY 2025-26.  

This month, staff recommends adoption of the County & Local Program guidelines for the 

regionwide competitive call for projects process, administered and selected by MTC in 

coordination with the nine Bay Area County Transportation Agencies (CTAs). The guidelines 

provide additional details on the procedures and project selection criteria outlined in the overall 

OBAG 3 programming framework, and can be reviewed in full in Appendix A-1 to the program 

resolution. 

Nomination Targets 

The call for projects guidelines include nomination targets for each county, which establish the 

maximum funding request that each CTA may submit to MTC in project nominations. For policy 

continuity and consistency, MTC staff recommend using the same factors and overall weights 

that were used in prior OBAG cycles to develop nomination targets, with only minimal changes 

to incorporate the most recently available data. However, for OBAG 3, the resulting targets do 

not imply or guarantee funding amounts or relative 

shares to any individual county or jurisdiction.  

The factors, relative weighting, and source 

information used in developing the proposed 

nomination targets for each county are as follows: 

• Population: 50% of the nomination target is 

based on a county’s share of the regional 

population, using 2021 population estimates 

from the California Department of Finance. 

• Housing Production: 30% of the nomination 

target is based on a county’s share of regional 

RHNA -

Affordable

12%

RHNA -

Total

8%

Production -

Affordable

18%

Production -

Total

12%

Population

50%

26



Programming and Allocations Committee  Agenda Item 3a - 22-0343 

March 9, 2022 

Page 2  

 

 

 

housing production during the current and previous Regional Housing Needs Allocation 

(RHNA) cycles (2007 to 2019), using building permit data compiled by the Association 

of Bay Area Governments (ABAG). Similar to OBAG 2, permitted units in each 

jurisdiction are capped at RHNA totals.  

• Planned Growth: 20% of the nomination target is based on a county’s share of regional 

housing allocations through the 2023-31 RHNA cycle. 

• Housing Affordability: For housing production and RHNA factors, 60% of each factor 

is calculated based on the production or planned growth in affordable housing alone, 

while the remaining 40% considers all housing types. Affordable housing is defined as 

housing for very low-, low-, or moderate-income households, categories established by 

the California Department of Housing and Urban Community Development (HCD) based 

on county-specific housing cost as a proportion of local area median income (AMI).  

To ensure a sufficient pool of project nominations for regional project selection, MTC is 

soliciting nominations for 120% of the available funding capacity for the County & Local 

Program. With a total of $340 million available for programming, the nomination target for the 

call for projects totals $408 million (120%). MTC will award $340 million to projects selected 

from the larger nomination pool. 

The nomination target for each CTA, calculated using the factors described above, and totaling 

the 120% nomination target total, is shown in the following table.  

County 
Nomination 

Target % 

Nomination 

Target $ 

Alameda 20.3% $82,827,000 

Contra Costa 13.9% $56,775,000 

Marin 2.8% $11,544,000 

Napa 1.5% $6,143,000 

San Francisco 15.2% $62,138,000 

San Mateo 9.1% $37,054,000 

Santa Clara 26.8% $109,385,000 

Solano 4.7% $19,159,000 

Sonoma 5.6% $22,975,000 

CTA Nomination Totals 

120% available funds 
$408,000,000 

Funds Available 

County & Local Program 
$340,000,000 

27



Programming and Allocations Committee  Agenda Item 3a - 22-0343 

March 9, 2022 

Page 3  

 

 

 

Note: MTC will award $340 million to projects selected from the $408 million nomination pool.   

Outreach Requirements  

The guidelines establish the public engagement and outreach requirements for MTC and the 

CTAs. Prior to issuing the call for projects within their county, each CTA is required to develop 

a public outreach and engagement plan, in coordination with MTC staff to ensure it satisfies 

applicable federal and regional requirements. In addition, prior to the September 30, 2022 project 

nomination deadline, CTAs are required to provide detailed documentation demonstrating 

compliance with the program’s outreach requirements.  

County Screening, Evaluation, and Nominations 

Following MTC’s release of the call for project nominations on May 1, 2022, CTAs will solicit 

project applications within their counties and conduct an initial screening and prioritization of 

projects.  

Priority Development Area (PDA) Minimum Investments 

In submitting project nominations to MTC, CTAs must meet the minimum PDA investment 

thresholds for their respective counties. For the North Bay counties of Marin, Napa, Solano, and 

Sonoma, the overall PDA supportive nominations must total 50% or more of the CTA’s total 

funding request for that county. For the remaining counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, San 

Francisco, San Mateo, and Santa Clara, 70% or more of each CTA’s funding request must 

consist of PDA supportive projects.  

Evaluation Criteria 

To prioritize projects that align with regional plans and policies, CTAs must give additional 

weight to projects that: 

1. Are located in PDAs or Transit-Rich Areas (TRAs), identified in locally adopted plans 

for PDAs, or support preservation of Priority Production Areas (PPAs); 

2. Are located in jurisdictions with affordable housing protection, preservation, and 

production strategies, including an emphasis on community stabilization and anti-

displacement policies with demonstrated effectiveness; 

3. Invest in historically underserved communities, including projects prioritized in a 

Community-Based Transportation Planning (CBTP) or Participatory Budgeting process, 

or projects located within Equity Priority Communities with demonstrated community 

support; 

28



Programming and Allocations Committee  Agenda Item 3a - 22-0343 

March 9, 2022 

Page 4  

 

 

 

4. Address federal performance management requirements by supporting regional 

performance goals for roadway safety, asset management, environmental sustainability, 

or system performance; and  

5. Implement multiple Plan Bay Area 2050 strategies;  

6. Demonstrate consistency with other regional plans and policies, including the Regional 

Safety/Vision Zero policy, Equity Platform, Regional Active Transportation Plan, Transit 

Oriented Communities (TOC) policy update, and the Blue Ribbon Transit 

Transformation Action Plan.  

7. Demonstrate public support from communities disproportionately impacted by past 

discriminatory practices, including redlining, racial covenants, urban renewal, and 

highway construction that divided low-income and communities of color. 

8. Can be completed in accordance with MTC’s Regional Project Delivery Policy (MTC 

Resolution No. 3606, Revised) and can meet all OBAG 3 deadlines, and federal and state 

delivery requirements.  

In addition to these evaluation criteria, CTAs may include other local criteria into their 

prioritization processes. Additional project evaluation criteria must be approved by both MTC 

staff and the CTA’s governing board prior to the release of the call for projects within the 

respective county.  

County Nominations 

After completing initial project screening and evaluations, CTAs will submit prioritized project 

nominations and required documentation to MTC by September 30, 2022. Prioritized nomination 

lists must be approved by the CTA’s governing board prior to submission to MTC. On a case-by-

case basis, as determined by MTC staff, CTAs may submit a draft prioritized nomination list by 

September 30, 2022 and submit the board approved nomination list and required documentation 

by October 31, 2022 

Regional Project Evaluation and Selection 

An evaluation panel of MTC staff will evaluate all project nominations and develop a 

recommended program of projects for Commission consideration and approval.  

Evaluation Criteria 

Following an initial screening of projects for program eligibility, the evaluation panel will score 

projects using the following scoring rubric: 

1. CTA Prioritization (75 points): Relative CTA project rank or score, which may be scaled 

and normalized across CTAs to allow for regionwide comparison. 

29



Programming and Allocations Committee  Agenda Item 3a - 22-0343 

March 9, 2022 

Page 5  

 

 

 

2. Regional Impact (15 points): Alignment with Plan Bay Area 2050 strategies, anticipated 

effectiveness in advancing regional objectives, and contribution to regionally significant 

networks or facilities. 

3. Deliverability (10 points): Sponsor capacity to deliver the project through the Federal-aid 

process, including consideration of prior performance of OBAG projects and anticipated 

risk to the project development schedule or funding plan. 

4. Air Quality (10 points): Projects eligible for CMAQ funding will also be evaluated for 

estimated emissions benefits, including priority for projects that reduce fine particular 

matter (PM2.5), as well as the relative cost-effectiveness of the project to reduce 

transportation emissions.  

Project Selection Process  

All nominated projects will be scored by the evaluation panel, with CMAQ funding prioritized 

for high performing air quality improvement projects. After the initial regional evaluation 

process, MTC staff may adjust project prioritization based on the following policy and 

programming considerations: 

• County-specific PDA investment thresholds; 

• Regionwide investment targets in active transportation investments and Safe Routes to 

School (SRTS); 

• Relative STP and CMAQ fund availability; and 

• Overall program balancing for a variety of project types, equitable investments, and 

geographic spread. 

Using this process, MTC staff will develop a recommended program of projects for Commission 

consideration and approval which is estimated in January 2023.  

Issues: 

• Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Revenues: Staff anticipates the 

STP/CMAQ apportionments from the recently enacted federal surface transportation 

authorization, IIJA or Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL), will exceed the $750 million 

in programming capacity currently estimated for the four-year OBAG 3 framework. The 

programming of additional STP/CMAQ funds will be considered through a future 

Commission action.    

• Active Transportation Investment: The OBAG 3 framework established a $200 million 

aspirational investment target that aligns with the aggressive mode shift and safety goals 

of PBA 2050. Staff will monitor the development of federal and state funding programs 

30



Programming and Allocations Committee  Agenda Item 3a - 22-0343 

March 9, 2022 

Page 6  

 

 

 

that support active transportation projects in the coming months, as well as the project 

nominations submitted by each CTA, and may recommend adjusting this program-

specific investment target accordingly. 

• Federal Programming Requirements: The County & Local Program Guidelines 

provide additional details on the process through which MTC will solicit, evaluate, and 

select projects for STP/CMAQ funds. Staff are confident that these guidelines satisfy the 

federal corrective action MTC received regarding its programming of STP/CMAQ 

funding. Staff will continue to work with federal and state partners to ensure the OBAG 3 

programs are implemented consistent with federal requirements.   

Recommendations: 

Refer MTC Resolution No. 4505, Revised, to the Commission for approval. 

Attachments: 

• Presentation 

• MTC Resolution No. 4505, Revised, Appendix A-1 

____________________________________ 

       Therese W. McMillan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



 Date: January 26, 2022 

 W.I.:  1512 

 Referred by: PAC 

 Revised: 02/23/22-C 03/23/22-C 

 

ABSTRACT 

Resolution No. 4505, Revised 

 

Adoption of the project selection and programming policies for the third round of the One Bay 

Area Grant program (OBAG 3). The project selection and programming policies contain the 

project categories that are to be funded with various fund sources, including federal surface 

transportation act funding assigned to MTC for programming, to implement the Regional 

Transportation Plan (Plan Bay Area 2050) and to be included in the federal Transportation 

Improvement Program (TIP) for the OBAG 3 funding delivery period. 

 

The resolution includes the following attachments: 

 Attachment A  – OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies  

 Attachment B – OBAG 3 Project Lists 

 

With the adoption of the project selection and programming policies, Attachments B-1 and B-2 

program $8,300,000 to Regional Planning Activities, $37,200,000 for OBAG 3 Program and 

Project Implementation, and $4,000,000 for Program and Project Implementation for transit 

transformation activities within the Planning and Program Implementation Regional Program; 

and $35,157,000 for CTA Planning Activities within the Planning and Program Implementation  

County & Local Program. 

 

On February 23, 2022, Attachment B-1 was revised to program $30,000,000 in OBAG 3 

Regional Multimodal Systems Operations and Performance Program funds to the Clipper C2 

Capital project as part of an alternative funding plan for the project’s Regional Measure 3 (RM3) 

funds. 

 

On March 23, 2022, Appendix A-1 was added to incorporate guidelines for the County and 

Local Program call for projects.  

 

Further discussion of the project selection criteria and programming policy is contained in 

memorandums to the Programming and Allocations Committee dated January 12, 2022; 

February 9, 2022 and March 9, 2022. 

 

32



  

 Date: January 26, 2022 

 W.I.:  1512 

 Referred by: PAC 

  

RE: One Bay Area Grant Program (OBAG 3) Project Selection and Programming Policies  

 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. 4505 

 

 WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is the Regional 

Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) for the San Francisco Bay Area pursuant to 

Government Code Section 66500 et seq.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, MTC is the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the 

nine-county San Francisco Bay Area region and is required to prepare and endorse a 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) which includes federal funds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, MTC, as the RTPA/MPO for the San Francisco Bay Area, is assigned 

programming and project selection responsibilities for certain state and federal funds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, state and federal funds assigned for RTPA/MPO programming discretion 

are subject to availability and must be used within prescribed funding deadlines; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Obligation Authority 

(OA) Management Policy allows RTPAs and MPOs to exchange regional Surface Transportation 

Block Grant Program (STP), Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program 

(CMAQ), and other federal funds assigned to the RTPA or MPO with Caltrans and other regions, 

when a region or Caltrans-managed local program has excess or insufficient apportionment 

available to deliver its annual federal program; and 

  

 WHEREAS, Title 23 CFR § 630, Subpart G, allows the advancement of federal-aid 

projects and expenditure of eligible costs prior to the obligation of funds (referred to as 

“Advance Construction” or “AC”) with reimbursement of eligible expenditures permitted 

following conversion of the AC to a regular obligation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, MTC, in cooperation with transit operators, Caltrans, the Bay Area Air 

Quality Management District (BAAQMD), Bay Area County Transportation Agencies (CTAs), 

counties, cities, and interested stakeholders, has developed policies and procedures to be used in 

33



MTC Resolution 4505 

Page 2 

 

 

the selection of projects to be funded with various funding including regional federal funds as set 

forth in Attachments A and B of this Resolution, incorporated herein as though set forth at 

length; and 

 

 WHEREAS, using the policies set forth in Attachment A of this Resolution, MTC, in 

cooperation with the Bay Area Partnership and interested stakeholders, will develop a program 

of projects to be funded with these funds for inclusion in the federal TIP, as set forth in 

Attachment B of this Resolution, incorporated herein as though set forth at length; and 

 

 WHEREAS the federal TIP and subsequent TIP revisions and updates are subject to 

public review and comment; now therefore be it  

 

 RESOLVED that MTC approves the “Project Selection and Programming Policies” for 

projects to be funded in the OBAG 3 program as set forth in Attachments A and B of this 

Resolution; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED that the funds assigned to MTC as the RTPA/MPO for programming and 

project selection shall be pooled and distributed on a regional basis for implementation of project 

selection criteria, policies, procedures, and programming, consistent with implementation of the 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP); and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED that the projects will be included in the federal TIP subject to final federal 

approval and requirements; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED that the Executive Director or designee may make technical adjustments 

and other non-substantial revisions, including changes to project sponsor, updates to fund 

sources and distributions to reflect final funding criteria and availability; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED that the Executive Director or designee is authorized to revise Attachment B 

as necessary to reflect the programming of projects as the projects are selected, revised, and 

included in the federal TIP; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED that the Executive Director or designee is authorized to execute Advance 

Construction (AC) Authorizations with Caltrans and/or the Federal Highway Administration 

(FHWA) for federal projects sponsored or implemented by the Metropolitan Transportation 

Commission; and be it further 

34



MTC Resolution 4505 

Page 3 

 

 

 

 RESOLVED that the Executive Director or designee is authorized to execute agreements 

and Letters/Memorandums of Understanding with Caltrans and other MPOs and RTPAs for the 

exchange of regional Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STP) and Congestion 

Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) and other federal funds assigned to 

MTC for programming discretion, consistent with Caltrans’ Obligation Authority (OA) 

Management Policy; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED that the Executive Director or designee shall make available a copy of this 

resolution, and attachments as may be required and appropriate. 

 

 

 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 

 

 

   

 Alfredo Pedroza, Chair 

 

 

The above resolution was entered into 

by the Metropolitan Transportation  

Commission at the regular meeting  

of the Commission held in San Francisco, 

California and at other remote locations 

on January 26, 2022.

35



Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 1 
 

 

Appendix A-1: County & Local Program Call for Projects Guidelines 

The One Bay Area Grant (OBAG 3) County & Local Program funding is available to projects through a 

competitive call for projects process, administered and selected by MTC in coordination with the nine 

Bay Area County Transportation Agencies (CTAs). MTC is responsible for call for projects oversight and 

final project selection.  

To receive County & Local Program funding, CTAs and project sponsors must adhere to all OBAG 3 

programming policies, including the call for projects guidelines. In the case of any conflict or 

inconsistency between these guidelines (MTC Resolution No. 4505, Appendix A-1) and the OBAG 3 

Project Selection and Programming Policies (MTC Resolution No. 4505, Attachment A), the Project 

Selection and Programming Policies will be given precedence. 

Program Requirements  

Sponsor Requirements 

Bay Area cities, counties, transit agencies, federally-recognized Tribal governments, and CTAs are eligible 

to apply for OBAG 3 County & Local Program funds. Cities and counties must meet the following 

requirements to receive program funding: 

• Have a general plan housing element adopted and certified by the California Department of 

Housing and Community Development (HCD) for the 2023-31 Regional Housing Needs 

Allocation (RHNA) cycle by December 31, 2023, and maintain certification throughout the OBAG 

3 program period; 

• Submit Housing Element Annual Reports to HCD each year by the April 1 deadline throughout 

the OBAG 3 program period; 

• Adopt a resolution self-certifying compliance with state housing laws related to surplus lands, 

accessory dwelling units, and density bonuses by December 31, 2023; 

• Maintain ongoing compliance with the Housing Accountability Act (as determined by MTC staff) 

throughout the OBAG 3 program period; 

• Adopt a Local Roadway Safety Plan (LRSP) or equivalent safety plan, as defined by the California 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) guidelines, by December 31, 2023; 

• Maintain a certified Pavement Management Program (StreetSaver® or equivalent), updated as 

prescribed by MTC staff; 

• Fully participate in statewide local streets and road needs assessment surveys (including any 

assigned funding contribution); and 

• Provide traffic count data to MTC to support FHWA’s Highway Performance Monitoring System 

(HPMS) on an annual basis, or as directed by MTC staff. 

The above requirements do not apply to sponsors with no general plan or land use authority, such as 

CTAs or transit agencies under a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) or special district. 

In addition, all recipients of OBAG 3 funding, including public agencies without land use authority as well 

as federally-recognized Tribal governments, are required to: 

• Comply with MTC’s Complete Streets Policy, and its successor, including the requirement to 

complete a Complete Streets Checklist for each project applying for OBAG 3 funding; and 

36



Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 2 
 

 

• Comply with MTC’s Regional Project Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution No. 3606), including 

identification of a staff position to serve as the single point of contact (SPOC) for the 

implementation of all FHWA-administered funds within that agency. The person in this position 

must have sufficient knowledge and expertise in the federal-aid delivery process to coordinate 

issues and questions that may arise from project inception to project close-out.  

Project Requirements 

Sponsors may apply to receive funding through the call for projects process for eligible project types, as 

detailed by program category in the County & Local Programs section of Attachment A. Projects must 

comply with OBAG 3 General Programming Policies, in addition to the programming policies specific to 

the County & Local Program.  

 

For each project, sponsors must provide the following: 

• A Complete Streets Checklist for each distinct project location using the Complete Streets web 

application (located at https://completestreets.mtc.ca.gov/). This checklist will be updated as part 

of MTC’s Active Transportation Plan and Complete Streets Policy update, and sponsors will be 

required to complete the revised version, available by May 1, 2022. CTAs must make checklists 

available to their Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) for review prior to project 

nomination. For projects that have already submitted a Complete Streets checklist for prior cycles 

of regional discretionary funding, sponsors may be required to complete an updated checklist or 

complete a second checklist review with their BPAC, as determined on a case-by-case basis by 

MTC staff. 

• For projects eligible for Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) 

funds, the inputs necessary to assess the emissions benefits and cost-effectiveness of air quality 

improvements resulting from project implementation. Air quality calculation input forms are 

provided by project type on the OBAG 3 webpage (available at www.mtc.ca.gov/obag3) under 

“Partner Agency Resources.” 

• All projects selected by MTC for funding must provide a Resolution of Local Support, approved 

by the sponsor’s governing body (template resolutions are available at 

https://mtc.ca.gov/funding/federal-funding/federal-highway-administration-grants/one-

bayarea-grant-obag-3). 

• All projects selected by MTC for funding must submit a project application, through MTC’s Fund 

Management System (FMS), including a copy of the approved Resolution of Local Support. 

PDA Minimum Investments 

CTA nomination lists must meet or exceed the minimum threshold established for PDA supportive 

investments. For the North Bay counties of Marin, Napa, Solano, and Sonoma, the overall PDA 

supportive nominations must total 50% or more of the CTA’s total funding request for that county. For 

the remaining counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, San Mateo, and Santa Clara, 70% or 

more of each CTA’s funding request must consist of PDA supportive projects. 

To be credited towards each county’s PDA minimum investment threshold, a project must be located 

within or connected to a PDA, or be within one mile of a PDA boundary. Projects that are not physically 

located within one mile of a PDA but have a clear and direct connection to PDA implementation, such as 

37

https://completestreets.mtc.ca.gov/
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/obag3
https://mtc.ca.gov/funding/federal-funding/federal-highway-administration-grants/one-bayarea-grant-obag-3
https://mtc.ca.gov/funding/federal-funding/federal-highway-administration-grants/one-bayarea-grant-obag-3


Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 3 
 

 

transit maintenance facility improvements, may also be credited towards the PDA minimum investment 

thresholds. Determinations for such projects will be provided by MTC staff on a case-by-case basis. 

Projects which consist of countywide programs or activities, including funds dedicated to CTA planning 

and programming, are given partial credit towards each county’s minimum investment threshold 

calculations (70% or 50%, in line with each county’s minimum threshold).  

Nomination Targets 

County nomination targets establish the maximum funding request that each CTA may make through 

County & Local Program project nominations. Similar to prior OBAG cycles, these targets are based on 

population, recent housing production and planned growth, and housing affordability. However, the 

OBAG 3 nomination targets do not commit or imply a guaranteed share of funding to any individual 

county or jurisdiction.  

To ensure a sufficient pool of projects for regional selection, MTC is soliciting nominations for 120% of 

the available funding capacity for the County & Local Program. Each CTA’s nomination target is 

calculated as a percent share of this overall nomination total, using the following factors: 

• Population: 50% of the nomination target is based on a county’s share of the regional 

population, using 2021 population estimates from the California Department of Finance. 

• Housing Production: 30% of the nomination target is based on a county’s share of regional 

housing production during the current and previous Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) 

cycles (2007 to 2019), using building permit data compiled by the Association of Bay Area 

Governments (ABAG). 

• Planned Growth: 20% of the nomination target is based on a county’s share of regional housing 

allocations through the 2023-31 RHNA cycle. 

• Housing Affordability: For housing production and RHNA factors, 60% of each factor is 

calculated based on the production or planned growth in affordable housing alone, while the 

remaining 40% considers all housing types. Affordable housing is defined as housing for very 

low-, low-, or moderate-income households, categories established by the California Department 

of Housing and Community Development (HCD) based on housing cost as a proportion of local 

area median income (AMI). For the purposes of calculating nomination targets, county-specific 

AMI values are used. 

• Planning and Implementation Balance: Nomination targets may be further adjusted to ensure 

that no county receives a nomination target below the base planning amount programmed for 

that county. No such adjustments were necessary in developing the proposed nomination 

targets for OBAG 3.  

The resulting nomination targets are detailed in the table below by county. CTAs may only nominate 

County & Local Program projects up to the target amounts listed below. 

County CTA 
Nomination 

Share 

Nomination 

Target 

Alameda Alameda County Transportation Commission 20.3% $82,827,000 

Contra Costa Contra Costa Transportation Authority 13.9% $56,775,000 

38



Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 4 
 

 

Marin Transportation Authority of Marin 2.8% $11,544,000 

Napa Napa Valley Transportation Authority 1.5% $6,143,000 

San Francisco San Francisco County Transportation Authority 15.2% $62,138,000 

San Mateo 
City/County Association of Governments of San 

Mateo County 
9.1% $37,054,000 

Santa Clara Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 26.8% $109,385,000 

Solano Solano Transportation Authority 4.7% $19,159,000 

Sonoma Sonoma County Transportation Authority 5.6% $22,975,000 

CTA Nomination Totals (120% available funds) $408,000,000 

Funds Available (County & Local Program) $340,000,000 

 

In addition, CTAs are encouraged (but not required) to submit project nomination lists that align with the  

following regionwide County & Local Program funding targets and constraints: 

• Active Transportation Investment Target: OBAG 3 establishes a regionwide target of $200 

million for active transportation projects, including bicycle, pedestrian, and Safe Routes to School 

(SRTS) programs and projects. Bicycle and pedestrian elements included on projects that are not 

solely focused on active transportation (such as sidewalk or bike lane improvements included in 

a local road preservation project) also contribute to this regionwide investment target.  

• SRTS Investment Target: OBAG 3 carries forward ongoing commitments to SRTS 

programming, by establishing a $25 million regionwide target for SRTS programs and projects. 

Qualifying projects also contribute to the broader active transportation investment target 

described above. 

• Fund Source Eligibility: Fund source targets for the County & Local Program are proportional 

to the overall composition of OBAG 3 funding, estimated to be 60% Surface Transportation Block 

Grant Program (STP) funds and 40% CMAQ funds. As CMAQ is the more restrictive fund source, 

in effect this constraint requires that at least 40%, or $150 million, of County & Local Program 

funds be allocated to CMAQ-eligible projects. 

Outreach Requirements 

MTC partners with CTAs to conduct public engagement and local agency outreach for the County & 

Local Program call for projects, consistent with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and associated federal 

requirements. The existing relationships CTAs have with local jurisdictions, elected officials, transit 

agencies, federally-recognized Tribal governments, community organizations and stakeholders, and 

members of the public within their respective counties make them well suited to assist MTC in this role.  

CTAs should develop outreach plans consistent with this section, and each CTA must have their plan 

approved by MTC staff prior to initiating the call for projects activities in their respective county. In 

addition, CTAs are required to submit documentation to MTC demonstrating compliance with this 

section during the project nomination process. A list of acceptable outreach compliance documentation 

can be found below (page 7).  

39



Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 5 
 

 

Public Engagement 

As part of their call for projects process, CTAs are required to conduct countywide outreach and 

engagement with stakeholders and the public to solicit project ideas. CTAs are expected to 

implement their public outreach and engagement efforts in a manner consistent with MTC’s Public 

Participation Plan (MTC Resolution No. 4174), which can be found at http://mtc.ca.gov/about-

mtc/public-participation/public-participation-plan. CTAs should make every effort to follow current 

best practices related to virtual and in-person public participation, outreach, and engagement. 

CTAs should also make meaningful efforts to lower participation barriers for hard-to-reach 

populations, Limited English Proficient (LEP) speakers, people with disabilities, and those who are 

historically challenged from weighing in on public decision making processes. 

 

At a minimum, MTC and CTAs are required to: 

• Execute effective and meaningful local outreach and engagement efforts during the call for 

projects by working closely with local jurisdictions, elected officials, transit agencies, 

community-based organizations, other relevant stakeholders, and the public through the 

project solicitation process; 

• Explain the local call for projects process, informing stakeholders and the public about 

methods for public engagement; relevant key milestones; the timing and opportunities for 

public comments on project ideas, including all standing public meetings and any County & 

Local Program call for projects-specific events and/or meetings; and when decisions are to 

be made on the list of projects to be submitted to MTC; 

• Hold public meetings and/or workshops at times that are conducive to public participation 

to solicit public input on project ideas to submit; 

• When possible, schedule meetings/events at times and locations that prioritize participation 

from Equity Priority Communities and other communities that have historically been 

systematically left out of the decision-making process; 

• Post notices of public meetings and hearing(s) on their agency website; include information 

on how to request language assistance for individuals with limited English proficiency, as 

well as reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities. If agency protocol has not 

been established, please refer to MTC’s Plan for Assisting Limited English Proficient 

Populations at mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/public-participation/get-language-assistance or the 

Americans with Disabilities Act; 

• Offer language assistance1 and accommodations for people with disabilities on all collateral 

materials and meeting notices. Establish a reasonable amount of time to request assistance 

in advance and include this information in materials and meeting notices; 

• Hold in-person public meetings, when health protocols allow for in-person meetings to be 

safely held, in central locations that are accessible via multiple transportation modes, 

 

 
1 The Regional Housing Technical Assistance program has developed a useful reference document that 

outlines best practices for offering language translation services: 

https://abag.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-11/Best_Practices_Multilingual_Engagement_10-

2021.pdf. 

40

http://mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/public-participation/public-participation-plan
http://mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/public-participation/public-participation-plan
http://mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/public-participation/get-language-assistance
https://abag.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-11/Best_Practices_Multilingual_Engagement_10-2021.pdf
https://abag.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-11/Best_Practices_Multilingual_Engagement_10-2021.pdf


Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 6 
 

 

especially public transit, and ensure all locations are accessible to persons with disabilities; 

and 

• Respond to written public comments, and whenever possible, post all written comments to 

the agency’s website and summarize how public feedback impacted the decision-making 

process. 

CTAs with recent public engagement efforts relevant to the County & Local Program call for projects are 

encouraged to incorporate the results of these efforts into their project prioritization process, provided 

that such efforts are: 

• Completed recently or concurrently (up to 12 month prior to the County & Local Program call for 

projects, with older but relevant outreach considered by MTC staff on a case-by-case basis); 

• Sufficiently comprehensive to determine public support and priorities for transportation project 

types eligible for funding under OBAG 3 (for example, development of a Countywide 

Transportation Plan or Countywide Capital Improvement Program); 

• Conducted in an accessible, equitable manner consistent with federal Title VI nondiscrimination 

requirements; and 

• Supplemental to other, dedicated opportunities for public input on OBAG 3 County & Local 

Program funding specifically that meet the minimum outreach requirements detailed in the 

paragraph above. 

Agency Coordination 

CTAs are expected to work closely with regional stakeholders during the call for project process, 

including MTC, Caltrans, and potential project sponsors. At a minimum, MTC and CTAs are required to 

communicate the call for projects and solicit applications from all local jurisdictions, transit agencies, and 

federally recognized Tribal governments within their county boundaries. For counties with federally 

recognized Tribal governments within their jurisdictions, MTC and CTAs are required to offer 

opportunities for government-to-government consultation to the Tribes.  

Title VI Responsibilities 

Call for projects processes must be consistent with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, and the associated 

Executive Order on Environmental Justice (EO 12898), which together prohibit discrimination in federally-

assisted programs on the basis of race, ethnicity, or income. Public outreach to, and involvement of, 

individuals in low income and communities of color covered under Title VI is critical to both local and 

regional decisions. MTC and CTAs are required to ensure that underserved communities are provided 

opportunities for access and input to the project submittal process. This may include, but is not limited 

to, the following: 

• Assisting community-based organizations, Equity Priority Communities, and any other 

underserved community interested in having projects submitted for funding; and 

• Removing barriers for persons with limited-English proficiency and other communities that have 

historically been systematically left out of the decision-making process to have access to the 

project submittal process. 

Resources and Documentation 

CTAs may refer to MTC’s Public Participation Plan for further guidance on Title VI outreach strategies, 

found at http://mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/public-participation/public-participation-plan. Additional 

41

http://mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/public-participation/public-participation-plan


Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 7 
 

 

resources related to Title VI, civil rights compliance, and virtual participation are available from these 

agencies: 

• FHWA at http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/civilrights/programs/tvi.htm; 

• Caltrans at http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/DBE_CRLC.html#TitleVI; 

• MTC at http://www.mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/rights/index.htm; and 

• ABAG webinar: “Engage How To! Introduction to Remote Meeting Tools” at 

https://abag.ca.gov/our-work/housing/regional-housing-technical-assistance/training  

Additionally, CTAs are encouraged to use the following resources to source MTC pre-approved 

consultant services for their outreach efforts: 

• Equity Consultant Bench: for general support with outreach activities, available at 

https://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-

07/Equity_Bench_Consultant_Catalog_2021.pdf; and 

• Translation and Interpreter Services Consultant Bench: for translation, interpretation, and 

American Sign Language (ASL) services to ensure meaningful access by Limited English 

Proficiency (LEP) populations (as required under Title VI) and provide accessibility 

accommodations (as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act), available at 

http://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5b527bad-4840-4614-8ce8-72d94770e4e6.pdf.  

Both consultant benches include consultant firms pre-qualified by MTC through Request for 

Qualifications (RFQ) processes which included “Cooperative Use” language, allowing other agencies to 

use MTC’s processes to satisfy their own contracting and procurement guidelines. 

To demonstrate compliance with outreach requirements, CTAs are required to submit the following 

documentation to MTC staff by September 30, 2022: 

• A copy of the CTA’s public outreach and engagement plan, developed in coordination with MTC;  

• Copies or text of public notice(s) of opportunities for members of the public to provide input on 

County & Local Program criteria and/or project nominations, which must include information on 

how to request language assistance and accessibility accommodations; 

• A list of CBOs or other organizations representing potentially impacted groups that the CTA 

contacted for input on the County & Local Program; 

• Dates, times, and locations of public meetings, hearings, and/or workshops where opportunity 

for public input on the County & Local Program was afforded; 

• A summary of public input received during the call for projects process, and how such feedback, 

and the results of any relevant prior outreach, was used in the CTA evaluation and decision-

making process; 

• A description of correspondence and/or meetings with all applicable local jurisdictions, transit 

agencies, and federally-recognized tribal governments informing each of the call for projects 

opportunity; and 

• If information from prior or concurrent outreach efforts was incorporated into the CTA’s call for 

projects process, a narrative description of these efforts, how the results informed project 

prioritization, and how the CTA met the minimum public involvement requirements for the 

OBAG 3 call for projects described above. 

 

42

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/civilrights/programs/tvi.htm
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/DBE_CRLC.html#TitleVI
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/rights/index.htm
https://abag.ca.gov/our-work/housing/regional-housing-technical-assistance/training
https://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-07/Equity_Bench_Consultant_Catalog_2021.pdf
https://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-07/Equity_Bench_Consultant_Catalog_2021.pdf
http://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5b527bad-4840-4614-8ce8-72d94770e4e6.pdf


Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 8 
 

 

County Screening and Evaluation 

CTAs, in coordination with MTC, will solicit and collect project applications, screening applicants and 

projects for program eligibility, and initial scoring and/or ranking of projects. CTAs will develop individual 

application materials, deadlines, and processes for their county’s call for projects, consistent with these 

overall program guidelines and subject to approval by MTC staff. At minimum, CTAs must incorporate 

the following regional criteria into their project evaluations. 

• Eligibility: CTAs should screen potential sponsors and applications for eligibility with federal and 

regional requirements. Projects must be: 

o Eligible for STP or CMAQ funds, as detailed in 23 USC Sec. 133 and at 

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/factsheets/stbgfs.cfm (STP), and in 23 USC Sec. 149 

and at http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/ cmaq/policy_and_guidance/ 

(CMAQ); 

o Consistent with Plan Bay Area 2050, available at https://www.planbayarea.org/; and 

o Meet all OBAG 3 programming policy requirements described in these guidelines and in 

MTC Resolution 4505. 

• Alignment: CTAs should evaluate projects for alignment with relevant federal and regional plans 

and policies. Additional weight should be given to projects that:  

o Are located in PDAs or Transit-Rich Areas (TRAs), identified in locally-adopted plans (e.g. 

Specific Plans) for PDAs, or support preservation of Priority Production Areas (PPAs), as 

defined in Chapter 1 of Plan Bay Area 2050 and available for viewing or download at 

https://opendata.mtc.ca.gov/datasets/MTC::plan-bay-area-2050-growth-

geographies/about; 

o Invest in historically underserved communities, which may include projects prioritized in 

a Community-Based Transportation Planning (CBTP) or Participatory Budgeting process, 

or projects located within Equity Priority Communities with demonstrated community 

support. Equity Priority Communities are defined in Chapter 1 Plan Bay Area 2050 and 

described at https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-

priority-communities; 

o Are located in jurisdictions with affordable housing protection, preservation, and 

production strategies, including an emphasis on community stabilization and anti-

displacement policies with demonstrated effectiveness; 

o Implement multiple Plan Bay Area 2050 strategies, described throughout the Plan (in 

particular, Chapters 2-5), or implementation actions (Chapter 7);  

o Advance Federal Performance Management Goals for safety, asset management, 

environmental sustainability and system performance, as detailed in 23 USC Sec. 105(b) 

and at https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/tpm/about/goals.cfm;  

o Demonstrate consistency with one or more of the following regional plans and policies: 

▪ Regional Safety/Vision Zero Policy (MTC Resolution No. 4400): 

https://mtc.ca.gov/tools-resources/digital-library/10a-20-0788-resono-4400-

regional-safety-vz-policypdf 

▪ Equity Platform: https://mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/what-mtc/equity-platform  

43

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/factsheets/stbgfs.cfm
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/cmaq/policy_and_guidance/
https://www.planbayarea.org/
https://opendata.mtc.ca.gov/datasets/MTC::plan-bay-area-2050-growth-geographies/about
https://opendata.mtc.ca.gov/datasets/MTC::plan-bay-area-2050-growth-geographies/about
https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-priority-communities
https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-priority-communities
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/tpm/about/goals.cfm
https://mtc.ca.gov/tools-resources/digital-library/10a-20-0788-resono-4400-regional-safety-vz-policypdf
https://mtc.ca.gov/tools-resources/digital-library/10a-20-0788-resono-4400-regional-safety-vz-policypdf
https://mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/what-mtc/equity-platform


Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 9 
 

 

▪ Regional Active Transportation Plan (in development): 

https://mtc.ca.gov/funding/investment-strategies-commitments/climate-

protection/regional-active-transportation-plan 

▪ Transit Oriented Communities Policy (update pending): 

https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/land-use/transit-oriented-development-tod-policy  

▪ Blue Ribbon Transit Transformation Action Plan: 

https://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-

09/Transit_Action_Plan_1.pdf 

• Community Support: CTAs must prioritize project applications with demonstrated public 

support from communities disproportionately impacted by past discriminatory practices, 

including redlining, racial covenants, urban renewal, and highway construction that divided low-

income and communities of color. Community support may be determined through a variety of 

means, including (but not limited to): 

o Responses to public outreach, including comments received at public meetings or 

hearings, feedback from community workshops, survey responses, etc.; and 

o Endorsement by a Community-Based Organization (CBO) representing historically and 

potentially impacted populations. 

• Deliverability: CTAs must evaluate applicants and projects for potential deliverability issues, 

deprioritizing or excluding projects as needed based on risk. CTAs should ensure that project 

sponsors have sufficient agency capacity and technical expertise to complete projects in 

accordance with MTC’s Regional Project Delivery Policy (available at 

https://mtc.ca.gov/funding/federal-funding/project-delivery) and meet OBAG 3 deadlines. 

Project sponsors must be able to obligate OBAG 3 funds no later than January 31, 2027. 

CTA project evaluation criteria must be approved by both MTC staff and the CTA’s governing board 

prior to initiating the call for projects activities in their respective county. CTAs may develop separate 

evaluation frameworks by project type, but each such framework must meet the requirements of this 

section.  

Project Nominations 

After completing initial project screening and evaluations, CTAs will submit project nominations and 

associated documentation to MTC for regional evaluation and project selection. Nomination lists must 

be approved by the CTA’s governing board prior to submission to MTC. CTA project nomination packets 

are due to MTC by September 30, 2022, and must include the following elements: 

• Nomination List: list(s) of eligible candidate projects for the OBAG 3 County & Local Program, 

ranked or scored according to the evaluation criteria developed by the CTA and approved by 

MTC staff. Nomination lists must comply with all OBAG 3 programming policies, including 

sponsor and project requirements, PDA minimum investments, and CTA nomination targets.  

• Board Approval: signed resolution documenting CTA governing board action approving the 

County & Local Program project nomination list. 

• Outreach Documentation: materials verifying CTA compliance with outreach requirements as 

described above. 

44

https://mtc.ca.gov/funding/investment-strategies-commitments/climate-protection/regional-active-transportation-plan
https://mtc.ca.gov/funding/investment-strategies-commitments/climate-protection/regional-active-transportation-plan
https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/land-use/transit-oriented-development-tod-policy
https://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-09/Transit_Action_Plan_1.pdf
https://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-09/Transit_Action_Plan_1.pdf
https://mtc.ca.gov/funding/federal-funding/project-delivery


Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 10 
 

 

• Compliance Checklists: completed checklists and supporting documentation affirming 

compliance with County & Local Program programming policies for both the CTA and each 

sponsor with a project on the nomination list. Checklists should be completed by the CTA, and 

must be signed by a signatory authority for the concerned agency. CTA and sponsor checklists 

are provided through the OBAG 3 webpage (available at www.mtc.ca.gov/obag3) under “Partner 

Agency Resources.” 

Regional Project Evaluation 

Using the nomination packets provided by the CTAs, MTC staff will form a review committee composed 

of multidisciplinary group of staff members to complete a regional project evaluation process and 

develop a recommended subset of projects for adoption by the Commission. This process will consist of 

the following steps: 

• Eligibility Review: MTC staff will review submitted documentation and ensure CTA, sponsor, 

and project compliance with applicable federal and regional policies. Any issues identified will be 

communicated to CTA staff, and projects with unresolved issues will be excluded from further 

consideration. 

• Regional Criteria: members of the review committee will score projects using the following 

rubric: 

o CTA Prioritization (75 points): relative CTA project rank or score, scaled to a range of 0-75 

and normalized across CTAs. 

o Regional Impact (15 points): project alignment with Plan Bay Area 2050 strategies, 

anticipated effectiveness in advancing regional objectives, and contribution to regionally 

significant networks or facilities. 

o Deliverability (10 points): sponsor capacity to deliver the specified project, including 

consideration of prior performance on MTC-funded projects, and any anticipated risk to 

the project development schedule or funding plan. 

o Air Quality Improvement (10 points): for CMAQ-eligible projects relative cost-

effectiveness of projects in reducing emissions for criteria air pollutants for the San 

Francisco Bay Area Air Basin and additional consideration for PM2.5 reducing projects. 

• Project Ranking Process: candidate projects will be ranked according to their average review 

committee score. To ensure that high performing air quality improvement projects are prioritized 

for CMAQ funding, MTC staff will first develop a recommended list of eligible projects for CMAQ 

funding using the comprehensive rubric rankings (all eligible projects scored with a maximum 

possible score of 110 points and ranked from highest to lowest score). All remaining projects, 

including CMAQ-eligible projects not recommended for funding using this first method, will then 

be ranked with the air quality improvement portion of the rubric score excluded (all remaining 

projects scored with a maximum possible score of 100 points and ranked from highest to lowest 

score). The latter rankings will be used by MTC staff to develop a recommended list of projects 

for STP funding. 

• Program Balancing: candidate projects will be initially prioritized according to their ranking as 

described above. However, to achieve programmatic investment thresholds, and ensure a 

balanced program of projects, MTC staff may adjust project prioritization based on the following 

factors: 

45



Attachment A, Appendix A-1 

MTC Resolution No. 4505 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission   

OBAG 3 Project Selection and Programming Policies Page 11 
 

 

o County PDA investment targets; 

o Regionwide investment targets, including Active Transportation and SRTS investments; 

o Relative STP and CMAQ availability; and 

o Overall program balancing for a variety of project types, equitable investments, and 

geographic spread. 

Using this process, MTC staff will develop a draft program of recommended projects for Commission 

adoption. MTC staff will coordinate with CTA staff to provide comments and feedback on the draft 

program of projects, and may refine the recommended program of projects accordingly.  

Program Approval 

The Commission will consider the recommended OBAG 3 County & Local Program projects in January 

2023. Projects approved by the Commission for funding will be eligible for programming into the TIP 

starting in February 2023. Approved County & Local Program projects and any subsequent revisions by 

the Commission will be detailed in Attachment B-2. 

Projects nominated by CTAs but not selected for funding by the Commission will automatically be 

considered for future eligible funding opportunities through the OBAG 3 Regional Program, or as 

additional programming capacity becomes available for the County & Local Program. 

46



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6.B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47



 
DATE: April 4, 2022 
 
TO:  Southwest Area Transportation Committee (SWAT)    
   
FROM: Town of Danville 

Andy Dillard, Transportation Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Request to Reprogram Town of Danville’s Appropriation of 

Measure J Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) 
Program Funds and forward a request to the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority (CCTA) for a required amendment to 
the Measure J Strategic Plan 

  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In June 2017, the Town of Danville was awarded $1.5 million in Mesure J 
Transportation for Livable Communities (“TLC”) Program funds for the 
Sycamore Valley (“Danville”) Park and Ride Expansion project, Measure J 
Strategic Plan Project No. 120052.  The project includes expansion of the facility 
to increase the number of parking spaces from 240 to approximately 360, 
installation of 10 electric vehicle charging stations, bicycle parking (e-locker) 
upgrades, and two new connections to the Iron Horse Trail.  The project design 
and environmental phases were completed in 2020.  The project currently has 
multiple funding sources consisting of Measure J, local funds and various other 
grants. 
 
Due to the shift in workforce commute patterns due to the effects of the COVID-
19 pandemic, the facility has been mostly vacant over the past two years.  In 
recognition of its current under-utilization, the Town elected to delay construction 
of the project and focus its resources on other high-priority projects in its Capital 
Improvement Program.  
 
The Diablo Road Trail project (aka “Diablo Road Circulation Improvements”), 
Meausre J Strategic Plan Project No. 120030 is a high-priority project that is 
idenitified in the Town’s current Capital Improvement Program; 2030 General 
Plan; Townwide Trails Master Plan; Parks, Recreation and Arts Strategic Plan; 
and Townwide Bicycle Master Plan. The project will close a major gap in the 
Town’s bicycle and pedestrian network (the remaining gap in the network) 
between the core downtown area to the west to communities and destinations east 
of Danville including Mt. Diablo State Park.   

48



Specifically, the project will provide a 0.9-mile, paved bicycle/pedestrian path 
that will connect the existing 0.5-mile Diablo Road Trail segment to the west to a 
new, developer-funded 0.7-mile path segment to the east that will ultimately 
provide a contiguous 2.1-mile multi-modal Class I pathway.   
 
Measure J TLC Program Criteria 
 
In 2016, the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (“CCTA”) issued a 
coordinated call for projects for the Measure J TLC and Pedestrian, Bicycle and 
Transit Facilities (“PBTF”) programs, and for the OneBayArea Grant (“OBAG”), 
Cycle 2 Safe Routes to School program.  The purpose of the coordinated call for 
projects was to better-align and leverage regional and countywide funding 
sources.  Projects were screened and reviewed through a combination of Regional 
Transportation Planning Committees (“RTPCs”), CCTA standing committees, 
and ultimately approved by the CCTA Board.   
 
Specifically, the Measure J TLC project applications were reviewed and approved 
by the following bodies, in accordance with the Measure J Expenditure Plan 
requirements.  The TLC projects and funding plan recommendations from the 
SWAT subregion are provided as Attachment A. 
 
 Regional Transportation Planning Committees (SWAT) – April 2017 
 CCTA Technical Coordinating Committee – May 2017 
 CCTA Planning Committee – June 2017 
 CCTA Board – June 2017 

 
Diablo Road Trail Reprogramming Request 
 
At this time, the Town of Danville is requesting that its $1.5 million Measure J 
TLC appropriation be reprogrammed in the Measure J Strategic Plan from the 
Danville Park and Ride Expansion project, Measure J Strategic Plan Project No. 
120052 to the Diablo Road Trail project (aka “Diablo Road Circulation 
Improvements”), Meausre J Strategic Plan Project No. 120030 (Attachment B).  
The non-motorized, multi-modal transportation project meets the Measure J TLC 
program criteria and eligibility requirements. 
 
With the 2018 approval of the Magee Preserve Development, the Town has 
obtained the necessary easements to design and construct the Diablo Road Trail 
project.  As previously described, this project is identified as a high-priority non-
motorized transportation project in its 2030 General Plan, CIP and other planning 
documents.  Futher the Town has committed multiple funding sources to fully 
fund the project, of which includes reprogramming of the Measure J TLC funds, 
summarized as follows (Table 1): 
 
 
 
 
 

49



  Table 1: Diablo Road Trail Funding Plan 
Funding Source Amount 

($000s) 
Local $         915 
Measure J, Major Streets, Program 24c $      3,059 
Measure J, TLC (current) $           75 
TDA $         150 
Measure J, TLC (requested reprogram) $      1,500 

Total Funding $      5,699 
 
Project Schedule 
 
In 2018, a feasibility study was completed for the project.  Preliminary design was 
completed in 2021, with final design scheduled for completion in 2022 and 
construction in spring/summer 2023.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Consider the request from the Town of Danville to: 
 

1. Reprogram $1.5 million in Mesure J Transportation for Livable 
Communities (“TLC”) Program funds from the Sycamore Valley 
(“Danville”) Park and Ride Expansion project, Measure J Strategic Plan 
Project No. 120052 to the Diablo Road Trail project (aka “Diablo Road 
Circulation Improvements”), Meausre J Strategic Plan Project No. 
120030. 

 
NEXT STEPS  
 
Provide SWAT concurrence and forward the Town of Danville’s request to the 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority for the reprogramming of Measure J 
program funds and initiate the required ammendment to the Measure J Strategic 
Plan. 
 
Attachments:  A – SWAT Measure J TLC Projects and Program Funding 

Recommendations (April 2017)  
                            B – Diablo Road Trail project (aka “Diablo Road Circulation      
                                   Improvements”), Meausre J Strategic Plan Project No. 120030) 
 
 
 
Staff Contact:  Andy Dillard, Transportation Manager, Town of Danville  
 
   

 
 

50



April 12, 2017 

Randell H. Iwasaki, Executive Director 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100 
Walnut Creek, CA  94597 

RE: SWAT Meeting Summary Report for April 2017 

Dear Mr. Iwasaki: 

The Southwest Area Transportation Committee (“SWAT”) met on Monday, April 10, 2017. 
The following is a summary of the meeting and action items:   

1. Approved appointments to the Contra Costa Transportation Authority’s
Technical Coordinating Committee (TCC) for the 2017-2019 Term

a. Planning:  Lisa Bobadilla, San Ramon (Primary)
i. Ellen Clark, Moraga  (Alternate)

b. Engineering:  Jason Chen, Orinda (Primary)
i. Larry Theis, Orinda (Alternate)

c. Transportation: Andy Dillard, Danville (Primary)
i. James Hinkamp, Lafayette (Alternate)

2. Appointed  - Don Tatzin -  SWAT Lamorinda Alternate Representative to the
Contra Costa Transportation Authority

3. Approved SWAT Funding Allocation for One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) 2 Program,
Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) and Safe Routes to School

The SWAT TLC funding allocation recommendation is as follows: 

51

adillard
Text Box
ATTACHMENT  A



 
 
 

2 

 

2017 SWAT TLC Funding 
Request 

Project 

Orinda $200,000  Downtown Orinda 
Streetscape Master Plan 

Orinda $58,000  Camino Pablo Bicycle 
Route Corridor 
Improvements 

Moraga $990,000  Strategic Bicycle, 
Pedestrian and Safe 
Routes to School 
Improvements 

Lafayette $980,000  Lafayette Town Center 
Pathway & BART Bike 
Station 

Danville $1,500,000  Sycamore Valley Park & 
Ride Lot Improvements 

Danville $75,000  Danville Townwide 
Bicycle Master Plan  

Contra Costa County $245,000  Iron Horse Trail Active 
Transportation Corridor 
Study  

San Ramon TLC Funding  $2,511,000 Iron Horse Trail- 
Bollinger Canyon Road 
Bike/Ped Overcrossing 

Total SWAT Request   $6,559,000  
 

Total SWAT TLC Funding  $6,559,000  
 

   

San Ramon - Pre commitment   $4,989,000   $2,495,000 (Cycle 3)   
 $2,494,000 (Cycle 4) 

 

 SWAT “pre-commits” future TLC for the next two funding cycles to the San Ramon 
Iron Horse Trail Overcrossing as follows:  a) Cycle 3 TLC funds in the amount of 
$2,495,000; and b) Cycle 4 TLC funds in the amount of $2,494,000.  With a pre-
commitment of two TLC funding cycles, totaling $4,989,000, the Iron Horse Trail 
project is fully funded fulfilling the OBAG 2 competitive grant criteria. In return for 
SWAT’s pre-commitment of TLC funds, San Ramon will not compete for OBAG 
Competitive Cycle 3 funding, as well as TLC Cycle 3 and Cycle 4.  
 

 The City of San Ramon, if needed, can front pre-committed TLC funds and seek 
reimbursement from CCTA in the year the funds are programmed.   
 

52



 
 
 

3 

 The pre-commitment of TLC funds from future cycles will be reduced by the amount 
of additional funding San Ramon secures from other fund sources (non-TLC and 
OBAG) for the San Ramon Iron Horse Trail Bicycle/Pedestrian Overcrossing Project. 
 

 The pre-commitment plan will be formalized in an agreement between CCTA and 
the City of San Ramon. 

 
SWAT Safe Routes to School Program Funding Allocation Recommendation: 
 

Jurisdiction Request Project SWAT TAC 
Recommendation 

Orinda  $387,000 Glorietta 
Elementary 
SRTS  

$387,000 

Moraga $150,000 Strategic 
Bicycle, 
Pedestrian 
and Safe 
Routes to 
School 
Improvements 

$225,000 

San Ramon Valley (San 
Ramon/Danville/Alamo)   

$300,000 San Ramon 
Valley Street 
Smarts  

$300,000 

 
 
Please contact me at (925) 973-2651, or email at lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov, if you 
should have any questions.  
 
 
All the best,  
 
 
Lisa Bobadilla 
SWAT Administrator 
 
 
Cc:  Hisham Noeimi, CCTA; SWAT; SWAT TAC; Anita Tucci-Smith, TRANSPAC; John Nemeth, 

WCCTAC; Jamar Stamps, TRANSPLAN 

53

mailto:lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov


DATE: April 10, 2017  

TO: Southwest Area Transportation Committee (SWAT) 

FROM: SWAT Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
By:  Lisa Bobadilla, SWAT Administrator 

SUBJECT: Consider and Approve Safe Routes to School (SR2S) and 
Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) Funding 
Approach for the SWAT Sub region  

BACKGROUND 

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is responsible for 
establishing the procedures for allocating expected federal funding for 
transportation purposes. In Contra Costa County, the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority (CCTA) is responsible for establishing procedures for 
allocating expected transportation sales tax revenues generated by Measure J. 

In November 2015, MTC adopted Resolution No. 4202 that established the 
“project selection criteria and programming policy for the second round of the 
One Bay Area Grant Program (OBAG 2) covering Fiscal Years (FYs) 2017–18 
through FY 2021–22.” Through the OBAG 2 program, Contra Costa will 
receive a substantial amount of federal funding that CCTA must program in 
compliance with set criteria and policies. Simultaneously, the CCTA is 
considering the next call for projects for Measure J Program 12, Transportation 
for Livable Communities (TLC) and Program 13, Pedestrian, Bicycle, and Trail 
Facilities (PBTFs). 

DISCUSSION 

In September 2016, the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) released 
a Coordinated Call for Projects for the second cycle of the One Bay Area Grant 
(OBAG 2), Measure J Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC), and 
Pedestrian, Bicycle, and Trail Facilities (PBTF) Programs, with applications 
due on December 9, 2016.  

54



Given the requirements of the programs, the review and ranking of projects have 
been done by three (3) separate groups. A group of local Contra Costa staff 
reviewed applications for OBAG 2 funding, while applications for the Measure J 
TLC program have been reviewed by the Regional Transportation Planning 
Committees (RTPCs). The Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee (CBPAC), which also oversees the development and update of the 
Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, reviewed for the PBTF program.  

OBAG 2 Competitive Funding 

On February 28, 2017, the Authority released a memo to the Regional 
Transportation Planning Committee's presenting the results for one source of 
funding the OBAG 2 Competitive program funding.  The memo is attached.   

The San Ramon Iron Horse Trail Bike/Pedestrian Overcrossing Project has 
ranked 7th Countywide and 1st within the SWAT region.  The Authority policy is 
to award competitive program funding to the highest ranked project in the sub-
region.  As the number one ranked project in the SWAT sub-region, the 
Authority is expected to program $4.5M for the Iron Horse Overcrossing 
project.   

TLC Funding 

The TLC allocation for SWAT sub-region is $6.6M.   At the March 3, 2017 
SWAT meeting, the City of San Ramon requested an allocation of $6.5M.  At 
that time, the City of San Ramon acknowledged that the request for $6.5M in 
TLC funds would leave very little funding for other SWAT jurisdictions in this 
funding cycle.  As a compromise, the City of San Ramon proposed to not 
compete for future OBAG, TLC and PBTF requests for the next two funding 
cycles.  

SWAT did not support San Ramon’s request. Rather, SWAT requested SWAT 
TAC develop a TLC funding plan that would provide a portion of TLC funding 
to all SWAT jurisdictions.     

SWAT TAC met and developed a funding plan in which each SWAT 
jurisdiction would receive a portion of TLC funding.  The plan includes a 
number of conditions, including:   

• SWAT “pre-commits” future TLC for the next two funding cycles to the
Iron Horse Trail Overcrossing as follows:  a) Cycle 3 TLC funds in the
amount of $2,495,000; and b) Cycle 4 TLC funds in the amount of
$2,494,000.   With a pre-commitment of two TLC funding cycles,
totaling $4,989,000,  the Iron Horse Trail project will be fully funded
fulfilling the OBAG 2 competitive grant criteria. In return for SWAT’s
pre-commitment of TLC funds, San Ramon will not compete for OBAG
Competitive Cycle 3 funding, as well as TLC Cycle 3 and Cycle 4.

55



• The City of San Ramon will front pre-committed TLC funds and seek
reimbursement from the Authority in the year the funds are programmed.

• The pre-commitment of TLC funds from future cycles will be reduced
by the amount of additional funding San Ramon secures from other fund
sources (non-TLC and OBAG) for the Iron Horse Trail Overcrossing.

• The pre-commitment plan will be formalized in an agreement between
CCTA and the City of San Ramon.

Based on above, the SWAT TLC funding request for 2017 is: 

2017 SWAT TLC Funding 
Request 

Project 

Orinda  $       200,000 Downtown Orinda 
Streetscape Master Plan 

Orinda  $         58,000 Camino Pablo Bicycle 
Route Corridor 
Improvements 

Moraga  $       990,000 Strategic Bicycle, 
Pedestrian and Safe 
Routes to School 
Improvements 

Lafayette 1  $       980,000 Lafayette Town Center 
Pathway & BART Bike 
Station 

Danville  $   1,500,000 Sycamore Valley Park & 
Ride Lot Improvements 

Danville  $         75,000 Danville Townwide 
Bicycle Master Plan 

Contra Costa County  $       245,000 Iron Horse Trail Active 
Transportation Corridor 
Study  

San Ramon TLC Funding $   2,511,000 Iron Horse Trail- 
Bollinger Canyon Road 
Bike/Ped Overcrossing 

Total SWAT Request  $   6,559,000 

Total SWAT TLC  $   6,559,000 

San Ramon - Pre commitment  $   4,989,000  $2,495,000 (Cycle 3) 
 $2,494,000 (Cycle 4) 

56



Safe Routes to School Program Funding Request is: 

Jurisdiction Request Project SWAT TAC 
Recommendation 

Orinda $387,000 Glorietta 
Elementary 
SRTS 

$387,000 

Moraga $150,000 Strategic 
Bicycle, 
Pedestrian 
and Safe 
Routes to 
School 
Improvements 

$225,000 

San Ramon Valley (San 
Ramon/Danville/Alamo)  

$300,000 San Ramon 
Valley Street 
Smarts  

$300,000 

NEXT STEPS 

1. Forward recommended project applications and funding plan to Contra
Costa Transportation Authority.

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Contra Costa Transportation Authority – Memo – Initial Ranking
OBAG 2 Competitive Funding;

2. Contra Costa Transportation Authority – Memo – Recommendations for
Second Cycle PBTF Funding; and

3. First Cycle Programming in Southwest County.

Staff Contact: 

Lisa Bobadilla, SWAT Administrator 
Phone:  (925) 973-2651 
Email:  lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov 
Web:  www.CCTA-SWAT.net 

57



���������	
�����	������	������	 ��	�	��	����	
�����	 ������	����	����������	������������	 !����"�#	�������		 $%&'	%(	)*'+,--.	�����/���	 0%123&.42	5%1'26	����	).4,7'	*'8	,9:-.9.'2*2,%'	%(	*	4.:*;*2.	<=(%%2=&,8.:*+.8	91-2,=14.	(*>,-,26	23*2	,4	>%'4,42.'2	&,23	23.	$%&'?4@A<A	$%&'&,8.	$;*,-4	B*42.;	C-*'	*'8	>*;;,.8	(%;&*;8,'2%	23.	DEEF	C*;G4H	I.>;.*2,%'	*'8	J;24	02;*2.7,>	C-*'K$3.	,',2,*-	:3*4.	%(	23.	:;%L.>2	>%'4,42.8	%(	:;.-,9,'*;64,2.	*'*-64,4H	41;+.6,'7H	*'8	M*4.	9*::,'7K		$3.	;.9*,'=8.;	%(	23.	:;%L.>2	>%'4,424	%(	:;%L.>2	8.+.-%:9.'2	*'8>%'42;1>2,%'	(%;	*	>*:,2*-	:;%L.>2	*-4%	(1'8.8	,'	B.*41;.N	C;%7;*9	DOP	B*L%;	02;..24H	$;*((,>	Q-%&H	0*(.26	*'8	5*=:*>,26	R9:;%+.9.'24	1'8.;	C;%L.>2	S%K	DOETUK	������	V	J	Q.*4,M,-,26	02186	&*4	>%9:-.2.8	,'	DE@<K	V	$3.	$%&'	&,--	14.	;.9*,','7	$W5	(1'8,'7	(%;	:;%L.>28.+.-%:9.'2	:3*4.4	%(	*	:;%L.>2	&,23	(1'8,'7	(;%9B.*41;.	N	C;%7;*9	DOP	),*M-%	I%*8	$;*,-	C;%L.>2XYDOETUZK	V	C;.-,9,'*;6	['7,'..;,'7\).4,7'	:3*4.	(%;	23.	),*M-%I%*8	$;*,-	C;%L.>2	,4	1'8.;&*6K	������]̂����	�_	������	V	$3.	:;%L.>2	(1'8,'7	:-*'	,'>-18.4	*	43%;2(*--K	V	C;%L.>2	41ML.>2	2%	C..;	I.+,.&	;.̀1,;.9.'24K	a�����	_���	
�������	���������	������	V	C;.-,9,'*;6	['7,'..;,'7	*'8	).4,7'	:3*4.	*>2,+,2,.4>%'2,'1.8	14,'7	23.	B.*41;.	N	b	$W5	*'8	%23.;	-%>*-(1'8,'7K	V	$3.	$%&'	3*4	M..'	&%;G,'7	%'	>%9:,-,'7	*	(1'8,'7:-*'	2%	8.-,+.;	23.	),*M-%	I%*8	$;*,-	C;%L.>2XYDOETUZK	

	 c������	 	 		 	 			�d�����																																																																						 efghi	jklm	C;.-,9,'*;6	0218,.4\C-*'','7	 5%9:-.2.	['+,;%'9.'2*-	5-.*;*'>.	 5%9:-.2.	).4,7'	 DED@=DEDD	I,732	%(	n*6	*'8	o2,-,2,.4	 DEDD	5%'42;1>2,%'	 DEDD=DEDT	W*'84>*:,'7	 p			 q�����/	��	�����	 r	����#		 stuvwg	B.*41;.	N	=	$W5	 xyU	B.*41;.	N	b	C;%7K	DO	 @HD@@	W%>*-	 AFO	$z)	 THEEE	$%2*-	 xUHDUE		 	
{|58

adillard
Text Box
ATTACHMENT  B



���������	
�����	����
��	������	

��	�	��	����	
	 	
�����	������	�

���	����������	�����
�������	 !����"�#	�	

��������
	 $������	%	&'�(
)&*	*

�����+	,������������
	

����������	 -�.	���+���
�	 ����������	 ����	��������	 -�.	����������

	 /0��������	,+�
��	��

��������	,�
����������	 ,�����	)����

�	 ��	����	  ��("�(����#	' ���	)�����	 	����	
1234536	175475412

	8	15781754
58	9:;<	:=	>?<@ABBC	

D<@AE:<FC<G?BH	>CIAJ<H
	KLMH	

NO	?<P	>CIAJ<	
QRSH444	Q8THU

2U	87T7541U	
	

VW
59



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



61



MEMORANDUM 
To: Matt Todd, TRANSPAC       

Brian Bornstein, SWAT 
Robert Sarmiento, TRANSPLAN 
Lisa Bobadilla, TVTC 
John Nemeth, WCCTAC 
Bret Swain, LPMC 

From: Timothy Haile, Executive Director 

Date: February 28, 2022 

Re: Items of interest for circulation to the Regional Transportation Planning 
Committees (RTPCs) 

At its February 16, 2022 meeting, the Authority discussed the following items, which 
may be of interests to the Regional Transportation Planning Committees: 

A. Election of Chair and Vice Chair for 2022

Action: The Authority Board appointed Vice Chair Kelley as Chair and
Commissioner Glover as Vice Chair for February 2022 through February 2023.

B. Approval of Countywide At‐Large Appointment to the Countywide
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (CBPAC)

Recommendation: Staff sought approval to appoint Soheila Bana as the new
Countywide At‐Large member to the CBPAC, to serve the remainder of the
two‐year term, from February 2022 through December 2022.

Action: The Authority Board appointed Soheila Bana as the new Countywide
At‐Large member to the CBPAC, to serve the remainder of the two‐year term,
from February 2022 through December 2022.

C. Approval of Fiscal Year (FY) 2022‐23 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA)
County Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan

62

tgrover
Hoang For



Recommendation: Staff sought approval of Resolution 22‐02‐G, incorporating the 
Authority’s FY 2022‐23 TFCA Expenditure Plan and allocation of County Program 
Manager TFCA funds in the amount of $2,192,333, and authorization for the Executive 
Director or designee to sign and submit the Expenditure Plan Summary application to 
the Bay Area Air Quality Management District. 

Action: The Authority Board approved Resolution 22‐02‐G, incorporating the 
Authority’s FY 2022‐23 TFCA Expenditure Plan and allocation of County Program 
Manager TFCA funds in the amount of $2,192,333, and authorization for the Executive 
Director or designee to sign and submit the Expenditure Plan Summary application to 
the Bay Area Air Quality Management District. 

D. 2022 Measure J Strategic Plan – Key Considerations

Recommendation: Staff sought approval to reprogram Measure J savings to the
following projects in the 2022 Measure J Strategic Plan: $9 million for the Innovate
680 (Project 8009), $1 million for the Interstate 680/State Route 4 Interchange
Improvements, Phase 3 (Project 6001), $1 million for the East County Subregional
Transportation Needs Reserve (Project 28001), $2 million for the Pacheco Boulevard
Improvements, Blum Road to Morello Avenue (Project 24003), and $5 million to
replenish the programmatic reserve.

Action: The Authority Board authorized staff to reprogram Measure J savings to the
following projects in the 2022 Measure J Strategic Plan: $9 million for the Innovate
680 (Project 8009), $1 million for the Interstate 680/State Route 4 Interchange
Improvements, Phase 3 (Project 6001), $1 million for the East County Subregional
Transportation Needs Reserve (Project 28001), $2 million for the Pacheco Boulevard
Improvements, Blum Road to Morello Avenue (Project 24003), and $5 million to
replenish the programmatic reserve.

E. Bollinger Canyon Road – Iron Horse Trail (IHT) Bicycle and Pedestrian Overcrossing
(POC) (Project 120025) – Authorization to Execute Agreement No. 579 with MNS
Engineers Inc. (MNS) for Construction Management (CM) Services

Recommendation: Staff sought authorization for the Chair to execute Agreement
No. 579 with MNS in the amount of $2,332,297 to provide CM services, allow the
Executive Director or designee to make any non‐substantive changes to the
language, and delegate authority to negotiate and execute amendments within the
contingency amount to the Executive Director or designee.

Action: The Authority Board authorized the Chair to execute Agreement No. 579 with
MNS in the amount of $2,332,297 to provide CM services, allow the Executive
Director or designee to make any non‐substantive changes to the language, and
delegate authority to negotiate and execute amendments within the contingency
amount to the Executive Director or designee.

63



64



TRANSPLAN COMMITTEE 
EAST COUNTY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
Antioch • Brentwood • Oakley • Pittsburg • Contra Costa County 
30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553 

 
 

March 15, 2022 
 

Mr. Timothy Haile, Executive Director  
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100 
Walnut Creek, CA 94597 

Dear Mr. Haile: 

The TRANSPLAN Committee took the following actions during its meeting on March 10, 2022: 
1. Adopted a resolution authorizing TRANSPLAN and all subcommittees to conduct 

teleconference meetings under Government Code Section 54953(e). 
2. Received a presentation on the East County Action Plan Update from CCTA staff and the 

Action Plan consultant. 
3. Received a presentation on the One Bay Area Grant, Cycle 3 (OBAG 3) from CCTA staff. 
 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 925-655-2918 or 
robert.sarmiento@dcd.cccounty.us. 

 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
Robert Sarmiento 
TRANSPLAN Staff 
 
c:  TRANSPLAN Committee  M. Todd, TRANSPAC T. Grover, CCTA 

L.Bobadilla, TVTC  J. Nemeth, WCCTAC 
B. Bornstein, SWAT J. Hoang, CCTA 

 

Phone: 925.655.2918     :::     robert.sarmiento@dcd.cccounty.us     :::     www.transplan.us 

  

65



MEMORANDUM 
To: Matt Todd, TRANSPAC       

Brian Bornstein, SWAT 
Robert Sarmiento, TRANSPLAN 
Lisa Bobadilla, TVTC 
John Nemeth, WCCTAC 
Bret Swain, LPMC 

From: Timothy Haile, Executive Director 

Date: March 31, 2022 

Re: Items of interest for circulation to the Regional Transportation Planning 
Committees (RTPCs) 

At its March 16, 2022 meeting, the Authority discussed the following items, which may 
be of interests to the Regional Transportation Planning Committees: 

A. Consider the Conduct for Meetings of the Legislative Bodies of the Authority
for April 2022

Recommendation: Staff recommended that the Authority Board reconsider
the circumstances of the State of Emergency, discuss the findings that the
Contra Costa Health Services released regarding the revised
Recommendations for Safely Holding Public Meetings dated March 1, 2022,
which strongly recommended online meetings, social distancing, masks, and
that a teleconferencing option for the public be provided if a determination is
made to hold in‐person meetings, and provide direction to staff on the
conduct of meetings for April 2022, with a reconsideration at a special
meeting in early April 2022, to adhere to the 30‐day requirement.

66

tgrover
Hoang For



Action: The Authority Board authorized staff to continue conducting 
meetings remotely for all legislative bodies of the Authority through May 
2022 with 30-day reconsiderations of the circumstances. 

B. Receive a Presentation from the Metropolitan Transportation
Commission (MTC) on the Proposed Transit Oriented Communities (TOC)
Policy and Provide Feedback

Recommendation: Staff sought feedback on the proposed TOC Policy
and authorization to submit a formal comment letter to MTC.

Action: The Authority Board provided feedback on the proposed TOC Policy
and authorized staff to submit a formal comment letter to MTC.

C. Approval to Enter Into a Funding Agreement with Contra Costa County for
$1,400,000 of Measure X Funds to Support Implementation of Elements of
the Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

Recommendation: Staff recommended that the Authority Board enter into a
funding agreement with Contra Costa County for $1.4 million in Measure X
funding for the funding period through July 31, 2023, and that the funds be
used to support: 1) user‐side subsidies for low‐income seniors and people
with disabilities; 2) the One‐Seat Ride Pilot Program; 3) One‐Call/One‐Click
Information and Referral Program; and 4) the establishment of a Coordinating
Entity.

Action: The Authority Board authorized staff to enter into a funding
agreement with Contra Costa County for $1.4 million in Measure X funding for
the funding period through July 31, 2023, and that the funds be used to
support: 1) user-side subsidies for low-income seniors and people with
disabilities; 2) the One-Seat Ride Pilot Program; 3) One-Call/One-Click
Information and Referral Program; and 4) the establishment of a Coordinating
Entity.

67


	3a - 22-0343 - Reso 4505 - OBAG 3 Revisions.pdf
	3a: Summary Sheet
	3a: MTC Resolution No. 4505
	3a: MTC Resolution No. 4504, Attachment A, Appendix A-1

	OBAG 3_Framework_slides-SWAT_20220404.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Background
	Program Details
	Contra Costa, Countywide
	Contra Costa Prioritization Criteria
	Regional Evaluation (MTC)
	Proposed Program Framework
	Smart Signals
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 13
	Active Transportation & Safety
	Common Patterns: Collisions Involving Bicycling & Walking
	Active Transportation & Safety
	Call for Projects Outline
	Schedule
	Slide Number 20

	SWAT stf rpt - Danville MJ TLC Reprogram_FINAL (040422).pdf
	ATT A - SWAT MJ Project Approvals (041017)
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM

	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf

	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf

	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	041017 CC-TLC Approval
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf


	ATT B - Diablo Trail_QPSR Oct – Dec 2021 FINAL

	ATT A - SWAT MJ Project Approvals_revised (041017).pdf
	041017 CC-TLC Approval
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM
	CITY OF ORINDA OFFICES, 22 ORINDA WAY, ORINDA, 94563
	SARGE LITTLEHALE COMMUNITY ROOM

	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf

	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf
	March 15, 2017 RTPC Memorandum.pdf
	Ordinance 17-01 Amendment to Chapter 1, Article IV of the Authority’s Administrative Code to Revise Section 104.6 (c ).pdf

	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf
	22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA 94563
	Southwest Area Transportation Committee
	NEW Meeting Location
	MaP
	031517 RTPC Memorandum with Ord. 17-01.pdf
	Ord. 17-01.pdf


	020722 SWAT Minutes final.pdf
	5.A Approval of Minutes: SWAT Meeting of January 10, 2022
	End of Consent Calendar




